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2 POTTHRS BAR HISTORICAL SUCIETY

CHATRMAN

e

XK. RUTHIRFORD DAVIS B.A.

Hon. Secretarys A. Har: -z,

Telephone 52973

83 Byng Drive,

Potters‘Barn

~ Pormed 1h 1959 to éncourage thec prcservatlon of thlngs
of local 1nters+ and to study both local and genceral historical matters.
Heetings arc held throughout the winter months at intervals of
approximately threg . 40 Tour weeks, details are oxhibited on the publlc

library ndtice boards or may be obtained from thc

‘secretary.

Membership is open to all interested people., Subscriptions arc 50p.
for thosc over twenty-one ycars of age and 25p. for thosc under

twenty-one.

All mombers of the

public arcweclcome to attcnd our

meetings whether members of the Socicty or not.
* ¥* I* * * * * ¥* * *
EDITORTAL—

Sincec our la:d
cen decided.
it was agreed that
restaurant to Goodhews Ltd.
July 28th iessrs. Goodhews

and coaverting the property.

igsue the fate of Wyllyotts
At the mecting of the full council on July 26th last
the building should be lcascd as a licensed
According to
are to spend more than £60,000 on rcnovatin
Potters Bar Council has thus rid itsclf

Manor has

“he Potters Bar Press of

of & burden whilc prescrving the building for the usc of the people of

Potters Bar -

In the
Shak: Yemas
be

somc of thig moncy could have been

“hat is thosc of them who can afford to cat therce.

Potters Bar Press of July 14th it is stated
.o becausc of its age ...
spent on its restoration and mointcnance,™

«o thousands of pounds will have to

It is suggested that

saved if the council had not

congistontly failed in its own avowed intention to prescrve the buildirg.

Readers will remember that this Socicty in
conjunction with the Potters Bar Tocicty put forward proposals for

the restoration of Wyllyotts
of the attractions of this
of badly neecded si*21l meeting rooms

more its contral position makes it casily accessible.
new hall at Oakmerc (lorge) and that in

tells us that there will be a

and its conversion to an Arts Centre.
scheme was that it would provide a number

O

as well as a small hall. Further
The council

the mid 1970's Lower lMountgrace School will be available for community

activitics.
and we heam that there will only be
Both of these alternatives lack the

* 3 * * 3
HMembers will note

contributed by lMrs. H.M, Baker, our
reccords. Wc thank her not only for

This is excellcent, but neither arc centrally situated

onc small committee room at OQakmere
charm of Wyllyotts.

* * * * *

that much of this issuc has been
indefatigable researcher into old
the cxcellent work she is doing in

this direcction but 2lso for giving us the privilege of Dbublishing some

of her work...

Contributions from others-would however be most ‘Wwelcome,
whether members of this socicty or not.

Letters, queries, personal

reminiscences of the past and any information of ah historical naturc

will be welcomed. Brief notes will
into an acceptable form.

do, they can be ecagily written up

Hen, Bditoere C.T. Overend,

30 Dcepdeney, Potters Bar.



WYLLYOTTS MANOR H(USE

Some notcs on recent rcesearch in the kanor Records

With the recent interest that has been aroused in the
lanor House of Wyllyotts by the discussions on its preservation and
future use it is perhaps a good time to look at somec of the other
records of thc house which arc to be found among the collection of
dceds and Manor rccords which were deposited at the London Guildhall
Library by the Brewers Company who were Lords of the ianor of
Hyllyotts from 1689 to 1937.

"The Story of Potters Bar and South lMimms" published
by thc Potters Bar Council in 1966 gives the background history of
the Manor and an architectural description of the Manor Housc so .
these arc only additional notes from rccords which had not been
studied at that date, which may add a littlc to our knowledge of the
house and clear up onc or two points.

The decds of sale of the Manor from the first salce by
Thomas Lewkcnor to "illiam Dodd in 1562, through ten subscquent
changes of owncership to James Hickson's bequest of the Manot to the
Brewers Company in 1689 arc all among thc rccords. In some of the
carly dceds the ink has faded and the parchment is cracked and
crcasced so that they arc difficult to read, but the chief Manor
Housc or Mansion ‘lousc as it is sometimes called appears in cach of
them from the sale in 1594 by Robert Stamford to Robert Taylor, the
yecor when the carlicst known plan of the Monor was mhde, to itce
purchasc in 1651 by Jamcs Hickson.

Two lcascs of the Manor Housc and its farm lands have
appcarcd in o zct of deceds found after the publication of the
history in 1966, The first of thcse was made in 1581. Robert
Stamford, Lord of the lManor leascd the ilanor Housce to ldmond Burr,
Ycoman of South Mimms who was to take over the house on the death of
Dynnic Hall, widow who held it on 2 40 year lcasc from Thomas
Lewkenor.  Sdimond Burr was to pay 100 marks and a rent of £20 a yeor
and at his own cxpensc repair and maintoin the ilanor Housc and all
the buildings, hedges, ditches and fences ns recuired. Dynnis Hall
dicd in 1587 and Bdmond Burr's lcasc was for 21 yoars.

The plan of the :lanor mnde in 1594 shows a front view
of the ilonor Housc with o long building in thce Background with a
chimney at thc cast end and o sccond building in front overlapping
the west side. It is o pity thoat this whs incorrcectly copied on the
copy in the 1966 History. It is named the Monor Housc on this plan,
These pictorial views of houses on carly plans do not always portray
the actunl buildings but if this was the llanor Housc at that time,
the long building in the background could be the long building which
remaing todny with its fircplace at the cast cnd. There is a
photographic copy of the 1594 plan at the Cranborne Library which
can becen scen on ruquust for you to check the originnl with the
1966 copy.

The second leasc of the lManor Housc is dated 1675 when
James Hickson had becn owner for over 20 yecars. 1t appears to be
a rencwal of an curlicer leasc as the tenant in occupation when he
bought the lanor ha~ the same »amc. It is a lcasc for 21 yeoars at
a rent of £40 to John Robinson, gentleman of South llimms and it
shows th:t somc¢ additions had been made to the house by the previous
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owner, Wrlter Lee. /Mfter setting out the ifansion House and
descrlblng it dn detall all the lands to be leased with the house
the lease states that certain rooms, which had been crected by the
previous owner, Walter Lee, werc to be rescrved for the use of James
Hickson and his heirs. The rooms are dcscribed as a hall and a
buttery, two chambers over the hall with a closct ond a garret over
the chambers. Therc was also cight polcs of ground adjoining the
rooms which had been cnclosed out of thc yard of the Manor Housc and
stabling for two horses and liberty of ingrcess, cgress ond regress
to and from the rescrved premiscs, and usc of the great yard of thg
Manor for mending and rcpairing thesc rooms. This gives us a
definatc date for additions to the carlier buildings. Walter Loee
bought the Manor in 1623, it was settled on his ncphew, also Walter
Lee in 1629, This Jalter Lee went bankrupt in 1650 and the next |
yecar it was soldito Jamcs Hickson.

When the danor was taken over by the Brewers company in
1689, as the endowment for the upkcep of James Hickson's almshouses,
the accounts for the first two ycars show that the laster Browers
and wardens, on their visit to South limms, werc given dinner at the
Mano~ Housc. John Robinson had dicd and his son Benjamin and his
widow Mrs. Robinson occupicd the Manor.

The Tobinsons remaincd tcenants of the lisnor for many
years, another Benjamin ond then a John appcar in later accounts and
finally anothcer widow, Mory Robinson, who dicd some time betwoen
1724 and 1725. Shc had fallen behind with her rent and in 1722 an.
attorncy of the company had been sent to scisc property of lMrs,
Robinson. After the report of her death there is a note of
cxpenscs spent on going to distrain ot Wyllyotts. Valucrs were gent
at this time and virious repairs to the barn and other property are
mentioned. Details arc given of arrangemcnts for re-letting. An
advertisment was put in the London ivening Post of July 17th 1725
stating thot the farmhouse and lani’s called Wyllyotts Furm were to
be lct by the Brewers Company of London. Printed bills were also
preparcd and the cricrs at Bornet, Hatficld and St. Albons were
instructed to advertise the intcended leasc.

The accounts for 1726 show that Tilliam Roberts who at
thot time was ~lso forming siimms Hall Tarm, had taken the leasc of
Hyllyotts Hanar. There is nothing to shew if he was living ot
ilimms Hall or at Wyllyotts, hc¢ scems to have had the samce trouble in
finding his rent of £50 a year. In 1737 the beadle of the Brewcers
company was scent to South .iimms to sce if therc was any of Hr.
Robert.  stock =t the form with which to make distress.

In 1747 hc again appears to be in arrears and a2 note
suggests that he has been forgiven two years rcnt. Unfortunately
the account book cndg in 1751 and no othcr account books appear
until 1893, I have so far not been able to tracc what havpens to
the Manor Housc in the period between except that Tohn Logsdon is
given as tenant in 1842 in the Tithe llap schedule. “rom 1767 to
1796 John Halsey was listed as oocuplbr of propcrty belonging to the
Brewers company in the Land Tax asscssments, ond Thomas Vass is
shown ot Wyllyotts Mounor in a plan made for the oversecr of thec poor
i1 1817

The 1later account book shows thot John Dickinson was
tenant of the Manor Form by 1893 :t rent of £140. A cattle shed for
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the farm cost £10 in the same yeor, In 1895 Dickinson's executors

were paying off his arrears of rent. Repnirs to the roof cost £10

in 1896 ~nd by the cnd of the year Alfred Hammett was in occupation
of the frrm.

In 1907 Samuel Warboys was pnid for painting nnd for
notide bonrds for the Manor House, ~»nd a valuition and survey of the
property was made in 1908. Thomas Woodrow is listed as paying the
rent in that year. From 1919 I.J. Peart is listed as paying the
rent and halfway through 1923 Mr. Sc-brook took over the lease.

: The rest of the history is told by Mr. So~brook in nn
article in the Tronsactions of the London nnd Middlecsex Archaelogicdl
Socicty (New Scrics Vol.5. 1929 pp 289/296) which describes his
purchasc of the Manor House and his cofforts to restorc the building,
with photographs of thc lMawnor during his rcstoration. There is a
copy of these Transactions at the Barnet luseum Library.

Onc other notc is perhaps worth adding. It concerns a
plon of o housc ~t Potters Bnr which oppears in o book of plans by
John Thorpe the Blizabethan Architcct. . In the appendex to "The
Story of Potters Bar" (page 134) and olso on page 4 of the "Casc
for Prcserving Wyllyotts Manor" it is suggestod that this was a
plan for rcbuilding Wyllyotts lMonor. From cvidence which I have
collected and is sct out below I think this assumption is incorrect.

The plan is morked "kir. Taylor ot Potters Bar 1596%.
In 1594 wvhen Robert Toylor bought Wyllyotts Mrnor from Robert
Stamford it was occupicd by Kdmond Burr on n 21 yeor leasc.  Two
yecars later in 1596 Robert Taylor complcted the purchasce of nbout
30 acres of land called Cathnall Grove from Henry Gooderc, which he
added to the Manor lands. In 1603 when he sold the lanor to Sir
Roger Aston; the deced of sale ns well ~s listing Wyllyotts ilonor
Housc in occuprtion of fdmond Burr, 2lso includes 211 th .t il nsion
Iousc lately built upon Cnthall Grove of Robert Taylor now called.
Sothall Grove. Sir Roger Aston sold Cathall Grove ~nd the Manor to
Robert Honcywood in 1605, but two yenrs later when Honcywood sold
Uyllyotts lionor, the house on Cathall Grove was not included. Weo
know that Robert Honcywood sold scveral picces of the Wyllyotts
estate during his owncrship. Simon Flexmere was in 1603 copyholder
of Tottenhalls at Potters Bar. In 1606 this wos tronsfored to a
new owner and Simon Flexmerc next appe~rs as owner of Cathall.

It scems to me that John Thorpe's plon is of Cnthall
wvhich he built for Robert Taylor in 1596,

H.l, Bakecr
(Wovember 1972)

BLANCHE FARK

Readers will be interestecd to know that when Blanche
Farm was demolished in 1969 the Greater London Council sent an
architect to make a survey and to report on the structure of the
building as it was demolished. As the building was dismantled this
architcct, oy name Malcolm Airs, and a photographer made notes,
drawings and photographs of cach part of thc building as it was
taken down and from these he had made a most interesting report
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which includes notcs on 211l the known owncers from John Durham in
1420 through at lcast a dozcn changes to the Trottcrs of Durham Park
who bought it in 1912 and then sold it along with the rcst of their
property in South Mimms to the HMiddlesex County Council as part of
the Green Belt. From this history of the owncrship he has tricd to
rclate the periods at which the diffcerent parts of thoe house were
built.

The remaining part of the staircasc and some carly
windows have been rescuced and arc in storc at the Historic Buildings
Divigion of the Greater London Council. There arc also some
fragments of a small chest dated 1663 which had been uscd as
in-filling in onc¢ of the walls.

It is hoped we will be ablc to get Mr. Airs to come
and give us an illustratced talk on his finds some time next yecar,

H.M. Baker

(& lottor has been scnt to Mr. Airs asking him to addrcss the
Socicty during the next session - 5, )

S

* *
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*
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SQCIETY NSWS

Deeds_and Photogrophs

A sct of old dceds on the Lodbrooke frontoge has been
presented to the socicty by iiessrs. Male & Jagland. We thank them
most hcartily for this gift.

We nlso wish to cxnress our gratitude to lir. Nethercott
for the lorn of decds ond photegraphs of South liimms for conying
purposcs. Readers arc rominded once agrin thot the socicty will be
grotoful for the ~oan (or girt) of old decuments ~nd photographs.
After copying the originals will be roturncd to the lender ond we
will of course take good corc of them while in our posscssion.

Archacology

In the spring it is intcended to hold = scrices of
inform~l locturcs on archacolozy followed by practicel expericnce
with onc of thc neighbouring socictics. Voluntcors from amongst
members and the genceral public should get in touch with the scerctary
(namu, addrecss and tclephonc number on page 2). Willing helpers
from among thce younger gencration arc narticulcerly woelcome and it is
hoped that somc at lcast will become sufficicently intercsted to
become members of the socicty and to take an active part in its
ariairs.

licmbership

Duc to romovals and othor causes the currcnt mombership
ia down on what it has been in recent vears. Sinco subgscriptions
account for at lcast 959 of our income ond the cost of liiving halls
is rising the only wey in which we con keop our subscription down
to its present low level is by increasing the number of members. Why
not bring - fricnd or neighbour to our noxt necting? We meke no
charge for visitors to our moctings but hope that they will prove
sufficicntly inter: sted to want to join us, In particular the
gocicty nccde morce younger mombers.



lotes on Deeds and other Docuaments from
. SOUTH KIMMS PARTSH CHEST

1 s -

These notes =re Trom documents which the Vicar of
South liimms kindly allowed me to copy. They have now been deposited
with the other South llimms records at the Middlesex section of the
Greater London Record Office, 1 iuccn Annc Buildings, Dartmouth St.
Sl

The first three arc concecrned with the Poor Housc at
South HNimms.

1. 1637. Purchasec of a housc and garden at the north end
of South Mimms strcet from Abell and Henry Lwer by the Trustees of
the poor of the parish, for £85 described as the "poores money".

The nrofits and rcent of the housc were to be usod for the benefit of
the poor. Thc boundarys of thc property are given.

25 1724. Transfer of the above housc to new Trustces by
Rebecca Niccolls widow and John Niccoll son of the last surviving
Trustec.

3is 1724, Report of Vestry ificeting on the conversion of the
poor house into a common workhousc. It sets out the intents and
purposcs and the arrangements made for running the work-housc and
also the appointment of a master and mistress and an accountant to
look after the affairs of th:o housc.

4 17119 A wortgage on a house and shop at thc north cnd
of South Miams bclonging to Thomas Ellis.

B 1731. Agrcement signed by the mrishoncrs of South
liimms of their rcfusal to pay a cliaim for a dcbt of £40 made by
John Jacob who had latcly been Vicar of the perish.

The noxt five documcnts arc grants of a ycarly rent
charged on pniccos of waste lend which have been cncloscd. Thesc
charges had boen agrecd ot the suggestion of John Bocket who felt
that somc compensation should be made for the loss of rights of
pasturc on thc waste cncloscd.: The rent so collected was for the

benefit of the poor of the parish. The land cnclosed is described
in cach.

6. 1767. from Thomas Nuthall annuity of &4. for the
cnelosurc of 5 acrcs on Kicks ind Green. (part of New Lodge property)-

Ts 1769. from William Cooper annuity of 12/~ for
enclosurc of 3 roods 26 polcs at Bentlcey Heath. (now port of the
footpath ficld to west of Bentley Heath Farm.)

8. 1772. from Nicholas Moscley annuity of 5/- far 20
polces next the Dog and Badger on South FMimms Grecn (1ater the
Greyhound) .

9, 1775. from John Griffiths annuity of 16/- for
at Gallcy Cornur. (now part of thc site of the Duke of York.

10. 1778, from Stcphen Roborts snnuity of 8/- for 4 acre
of South kimms Green. (part of land of Ccdor House or Red Housc
both were built by Stephen Roberts on liimms Groen.)

acre

= Sl

I have a full copy of cach if anyonc wishes to look

“.at them.

H.M. Baker (1972).



8 | RECENT BOOKS

We wounld like to call members dtt*‘ulon to the fo lowlrg
books of historical interes which have been published--in recent

months. It - . regretted that space does not permit us to review any
of these.

"“aglish Delf*ware" by F.H. Garner and Michacl Archer — Faber and
Faber .7.50. This is the second (roviscd) edition of this work.

"Introducing Archacology" vy Magnus Magnusson - Bodley Head £1.95.

"An Economic History o% Inglends The 18tk Cent +y* by T.S. Ashton -
University Press £1.10,

"An Bconomic History of Mngland: 1870-1939 b, William Ashworth -
University Press £1.60.

* * * * * ¥* ¥* *

TTENDANCE AT MESPINGS .

None of thc mectings held so far this session have been
well attended. The I .st two have attracted only a dozen mcmbers cach.
This is particularly disturbing to those responsible for compiling
the programme.

Arc thce days chosen unsuitable for the majority?
Most daties are fixed by ihc speaoker, it being only fair that since
he is giving Tils services entirely free of charge he should Lave the
right to say when he will come. For thig reason also it is Jjust @2
little bit discourtcous when we stay away simply because it is +too
much trouble vo turn out.

There may be other roasons for pcor attcndances. Perhaps
members do not care for some of the subjcctse chosen for lectures?
The rcemedy for thig is in their own hands, the Committez would be
highly dclighted to receive suggestionz for futurc talks and will
make every effor’ to cngage suitable speakers.

* ¥ % ¥ ¥ % % %
CLAY PIFES

The dating of archacolegical finds may sometbimes be
fized by the prescnce of assoziatcd tds vhich can be »cadily dated.
Onc useful method is ofc comrsce by mecans of known pottery styles,
another is by clay tobacco pipes, the shape and style o which varicd
over the ycars and tac ycars in which any particular shape was
produced arc wecll known. On the “‘acing page is shown the various
shapes of tobacco pipc bowls produced during the years 1580 to 1840.
Many members will no doubt find this illustiration intercsting and
informative, it is hoped that thoy will also find it uscful. The
illustration first appcared in the archacological ncws letter from
which i+% has been roproduced.

* * * * ¥* * * *

CORRISPONDANCHE

Sir,

Do: ; any mcmber know what has happencd to the vestry minutce book

of South Mimms for 1750 to 1788 with an additional volume of cxtracts
rom the vestry mcetings up to 18062

it is quoted cxtensively in Dr. Brittain's book on South Mimms
and pages from it have been photographed and used as illustrations in
his book,

% was not sent to the Middlcsex Record Office with remaining
parish records.

Perhaps somecnce borrowed it for some pucposc and has fargotten to
return it. If anyonc knows ar_  thing about it perhaps they could lew
me know. It is a scrious loss to anyonc trying to trase the pari:h
hisvory at this period.

Helen M., Baker, 12 Oakroyd Closc
MTate Poilars Ror 53659,
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TYPE SrQueNces IN ToBacco Pipes,



